MINNESOTA STATE COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
September 8, 2009

Audit Committee Members Present: Trustees Scott Thiss, Chair; Jacob Englund, and
James Van Houten.

Audit Committee Members Absent: Trustees Dan McElroy and David Paskach.
Other Board Members Present: Trustees Duane Benson and Cheryl Dickson.

Leadership Council Committee Members Present: John Asmussen, President Pat Johns,
Gail Olson, Laura King and Lori Lamb.

The Minnesota State Colleges and Universities audit committee held its meeting on
September 8, 2009, at Wells Fargo Place, 4™ Floor, Board Room, 30 East 7" Street in St.
Paul. Chair Thiss called the meeting to order at 2:24 p.m.

Approval of the Audit Committee Meeting Minutes

Chair Thiss called for a motion to approve the July 21, 2009 audit committee meeting
minutes. Trustee Van Houten moved to approve the minutes, Trustee Englund seconded,
there was no dissent and the motion carried.

1. Review Legislative Auditor Financial Audit Results (Information Item)

Trustee Scott Thiss, audit committee chair, introduced and welcomed Mr. James
Nobles, Legislative Auditor, Ms. Cecile Ferkul, Deputy Legislative Auditor, and Mr.
Brad White and Mr. Dave Paliseno, Audit Managers with the Office of the
Legislative Auditor.

Mr. John Asmussen, Executive Director of the Office of Internal Auditing, reminded
members that the Legislative Auditor annually reviewed a portion of the colleges that
were not audited as part of the annual financial statement cycle. He noted that this
year the report had been divided into two sections. The first section focused on
findings that had policy implications systemwide, and the second section identified
findings that were specific to a campus which required some corrective action.

Mr. Asmussen stressed that the largest concern were the findings in the first section
which had been reported in the prior year for a different set of colleges. He noted that
it was important for the system to apply learning from one set of colleges to the next
to avoid this type of repeat finding in the future.

Mr. Brad White introduced Mr. Scott Tjomsland, Mr. David Poliseno, Ms. Tracy
Gebhard, and Mr. David Westlund from the audit staff. Mr. White summarized the
results of the Legislative Auditor’s report that examined the financial controls and



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 2

legal compliance at eight colleges. He stated that the focus of the work was internal
control and compliance college financial operations.

He explained that financial statement audits were meant to express an opinion on the
financial health of the college and provide an independent assurance that the numbers
were fairly presented. The control and compliance audits focused on operational
controls and day-to-day oversight over processing financial transactions and would
provide assurance that the colleges were adhering to board policies and system
procedures.

Mr. White reported that adequate control did exist over major and routine financial
cycles such as resident tuition, employee base salary and operating expenses. He
noted, however, that the colleges needed to tighten controls over smaller higher risk,
non-routine areas such as tuition reciprocity, employee leave and credit card use.

Mr. White stated that there were seven findings in Section A that involved systemic
issues and non-compliance matters that could best be solved by directive, guidance,
or oversight by the Chancellor’s Office. He added that Section B involved thirteen
findings that were specific college financial operations. He then led the committee
through a discussion of the major findings in the report.

Finding number one reported that several college employees had access to
incompatible functions in the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities financial
systems. Mr. White noted that some colleges had started to develop limited
mitigating controls, but that those controls were not in writing.

Trustee Van Houten asked why a staff member would be given incompatible access
to information systems. Mr. White explained that often colleges would to set up
additional access rights to another staff in order to have a back-up person for the
primary staff responsible. He added that the Office of the Chancellor had recently
developed a new process within the accounting system that would allow colleges to
give and remove access right to their employees directly. Ms. Laura King, Chief
Financial Officer noted that in the past, establishing security profiles that matched the
way the work was being done had been a very cumbersome activity. She noted that a
great deal of work had gone into simplifying that process.

Mr. White further added that many of the colleges were unclear of the specific risks
created by the additional access and would welcome guidance on how to develop
detective effective controls. President Pat Johns, Anoka-Ramsey Community
College, added that often in the rush of student lines and business, employees share
log-in rights for convenience and to save time. He added that the campuses could do
a better job in training staff of the implications of these shortcuts.

Mr. Asmussen agreed, stating that the desire to be student centered sometimes
motivated staff actions, but that they usually didn’t realize the potential exposure for
risk. He further added that the smallest college examined by the auditors was cited
for only one exception because they had a very diligent staff member who was very
thoughtful about how they granted access rights. He believed that example showed



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 3

that it would be possible to have strict access rights in the other campus environments
as well.

Finding number two involved errors in employee leave benefits. The Minnesota State
Colleges and Universities personnel system tracked leave earned and taken, however
that system required a substantial amount of manual intervention to be kept accurate.
Mr. White noted that they had encountered a wide variety of errors when testing leave
earned.

Trustee Englund asked if this was a function that could be done more efficiently if it
were centralized within the system’s Human Resources office. Ms. Lori Lamb, Vice
Chancellor for Human Resources, stated that it would be difficult to staff centrally
because it would require transportation of paperwork from the campuses, and it may
not gain efficiency or accuracy. But she further added that there was a lot that could
be done to improve the process.

Chair Thiss asked if there could be a system review of the work that was done. Ms.
Lamb agreed and stated that they were working on a methodology for campuses to
run a periodic report to review leave balances that had been entered. She added that
there was also a need to do employee leave audits more often than only at the end of
an employee’s career.

Chair Thiss observed that this finding had been a noted in prior years at different
colleges and he expressed concern about its repeating nature.

Chancellor McCormick stated that presidents at colleges not being audited should be
reading these annual audit reports and looking for ways that they could improve
processes on their own campuses before the auditors come there. He added that there
should be a way to communicate better to the presidents. President Johns stated it
may be helpful to have these types of systemic audit concerns added to the
presidential year-end reviews. Chancellor McCormick stated that the issue would be
raised at the next Leadership Council meeting.

Mr. Asmussen stated that the structure of the audit report this year would help
presidents be able to quickly identify systemic issues versus individual campus errors
in a way that had not been as clear in past reports.

Finding number three involved inadequate control over equipment and sensitive asset
inventories. Mr. White added that because college buildings were publicly
accessible, equipment controls were critical to provide assurance that the assets did
exist and that they had not been stolen.

Finding number four reported that colleges did not sufficiently control college-issued
credit cards to employees, nor did they follow formal system procedures. Mr. White
added that credit cards were an efficient tool in the current purchasing environment,
but that oversight and control over credit card use was critical.



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 4

Chair Thiss expressed concern that these inadequate controls were likely common at
other colleges as well. He asked how many credit cards were issued at the colleges.
Mr. Asmussen stated that at the eight colleges that were audited, the number of credit
cards varied widely, ranging from seven to one hundred twenty-six. Ms. King stated
that she and Ms. Gail Olson, General Council, were working to draft a procedure that
would outline the appropriate process for granting credit cards.

Chancellor McCormick stated that one solution would be to rescind all college-issued
credit cards, but he added that a better practice would be to institute a process to
handle credit cards efficiently. Ms. King agreed, stating that from a commerce
standpoint, credit cards had become the way of doing business and there were many
vendors that wouldn’t do business with colleges except through a credit card based
account. Mr. White agreed, stating that as more purchases were made over the
internet, college-issued credit cards were essential for doing business.

Finding number five involved pervasive control weaknesses with the lack of
documentation supporting some faculty member compensation at Anoka Technical
College.

Chair Thiss asked if the nuances of contracts and calculations made this difficult to
monitor. Ms. Lamb agreed that pay structures for faculty and different employee
groups were extremely complex; however, she added that it was important to have
documentation in place to support the decisions that were made. She added that the
Anoka Technical College already had taken steps to address these issues.

Trustee Van Houten stated that the complexity of the bargaining agreements and
contracts was clearly an issue. He stated that there ought to be communication with
faculty unions and administrative unions to finds ways to simplify these agreements.
Ms. Lamb agreed that these issues should be raised in a long term labor relations
strategy.

Finding number six involved early retirement incentives and the subsequent rehiring
of an employee back into a permanent position at North Hennepin Community
College. Mr. White stated that when early retirement incentives were involved, board
policy restricted the re-employment to a limited period, however, what constituted a
limited period had not defined.

Chancellor McCormick added that this situation was complicated by the fact that the

individual had retired from one bargaining unit and rehired into a different bargaining
unit. Ms. Lamb stated that those complexities had been reviewed and the situation at
the college had been resolved to the extent that the employee’s employment had been
redefined as a limited term appointment.

Ms. Lamb stated that she did, however, disagreed with the auditor’s recommendation
that board policy should further define the what was meant by a limited appointment.
She stated that a limited period in one instance may not be limited in another, and that
making an arbitrary line not work in each individual situation. She added that it was
important for the system to be able to retain flexibility. She stated that there should



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 5

be more communication with the colleges about the intent of the policy to ensure
compliance.

President Johns stated that it may be important to consider, not just communicating
the existing policy, but to consider if the current policy is the appropriate statement
for the system to practice. Chair Thiss agreed that there needed to be more discussion
on the policy implications.

Finding number seven involved two faculty from Alexandria Technical College that
received a larger severance package than they were eligible for under the contract.
Mr. White stated that the school district contract allowed a larger severance for those
retiring at age fifty-eight, however, both faculty members were under that age. He
added that the college felt justified in providing the larger severance due to past
practice where it had been providing the larger severance to other faculty members at
age fifty-five.

Ms. Lamb asserted that the use of past practice was correct, but that she respected the
perspective of the auditors and would work to make the issue more transparent.
Trustee Van Houten stated past practice could not override a written labor contract.
Mr. White agreed that in this case the contract criteria had been very clear. Ms. Lamb
stated that the colleges had operated good faith within what they understood to be that
advice they had gotten from the Office of the Chancellor.

Trustee Thiss asked how this situation could be clarified going forward. Ms. Lamb
stated that it would be her intent to codify the past practice. Trustee Van Houten
stated that he did not believe there was a good argument to be made for future
practice based on a past mistake. He added, however, that this issue could be dealt
with as an assignment from the audit committee.

Chancellor McCormick asked if there were statutes of limitations as to how far the
system would be allowed to go back to collect money. Ms. Lamb stated that the issue
would be the difficulty in going back to collect money on an issue that the system had
intentionally entered into. Chair Thiss stated that his concern was how to deal with
this issue in the future.

Mr. White ended his presentation on the first section. Trustee Van Houten asked
about finding number ten which involved two colleges that did not promptly reconcile
and resolve differences between their local bank account balances and the system’s
accounting system. He expressed concern that a college would fail on a rudimentary
accounting record over the course of six months. Mr. White stated that in both
instances the errors occurred due to employee turnover. He added that when the new
staff were hired they were eventually able to catch up, but he agreed that it was
important for colleges to control their local accounts. Ms. King agreed and stated that
she did not believe this finding was a sign of further internal controls issues.

Trustee VVan Houten stated that it was a concern that these colleges could go so long
without closing their books. Ms. King pointed out that closing books in the public
domain was a much different imperative than it was in the private domain.



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 6

Chancellor McCormick added that it was much easier for a college to reconcile its
accounts a regular basis than to catch up afterwards. Ms. King agreed.

Chair Thiss asked about finding number fifteen involving several colleges that
reimbursed employees for questionable expenses or did not require employees to
provide sufficient documentation to substantiate claimed expenses. He asked if this
finding was connected to the issue of college-issued credit cards. Ms. King agreed
that there were areas that overlapped, such the use of credit cards for meals and
travel.

Trustee Van Houten asked what amount of capital costs were required in order to be
maintained on the capital inventory. Ms. King stated that for the financial statement
level and for inventory control the capital costs would be $10,000. Trustee Van
Houten asked if there was a record of all the items under the $10,000 threshold. Ms.
King stated that they were not listed on the books or on the financial statements. Mr.
White added that there was a category called sensitive assets which included certain
items under the $10,000 threshold such as computers and weapons, which were
intended to be put on inventory in order to help control them.

Trustee Van Houten noted that there were several comments in the second section
regarding collections. He asked if there had been any feedback from the institutions.
Ms. King stated that those issues were being tracked. She added that a couple of
corrections had occurred but that there had not been any collections yet. He asked if
the system was planning to wave any of the collections noted. Ms. King stated that
those issues where collection was the right strategy, would not be waved. But she
added that there were differing views about whether some should be pursued for
collection.

Trustee Van Houten stated that South Central College had paid three vendors for
services totaling $63,000 without evidence that the services had been received. He
asked why the recommendation had not included verification that those services had
been received. Mr. White explained that the auditors were looking for the control
practice which failed in this case.

Chancellor McCormick asked if all purchases were processed through a single office
in order to control that type of verification. Ms. King stated that ideally a single
office would be the best practice, but that often deliveries are made directly to a
faculty person’s classroom.

Mr. Asmussen stated that the Office of Internal Auditing had asked for and received
all the supporting documentation that the auditors had on these exceptions, and staff
had followed up on many of them already to ensure that these were legitimate
transactions. He added that his office would continue to track those transactions as
part of the routine follow-up practice.

Chair Thiss stated that typically the audit committee would make recommendations to
other committees for them to follow-up on specific audit findings. He asked the staff



Audit Committee Minutes — September 8, 2009 - Page 7

to prepare a brief report for the audit committee that would recommend appropriate
committee routing for each finding as well as a timetable for dispensing the findings.

Chair Thiss noted that while it is not the audit committee’s expectation that there not
be any errors in this environment, but that the systemwide expectation would be for
excellence in all things. He added that communication with non-audited colleges was
important in order to avoid repeat findings.

Chancellor McCormick stated that he had spoken with a former legislator who had
reviewed these audit reports in the past, and had expressed his appreciation for the
work of the Office of the Legislative Auditor, the Board of Trustees and of the staff.
He was impressed because they system took these findings seriously and used them
as opportunities for continuous improvement. He further expressed a desire to that all
state agencies operated with such diligence.

Chair Thiss thanked Mr. Nobles, Ms. Ferkul, Mr. White and their staff for their
excellent continuous improvement report.

Mr. Nobles thanked the committee and the Chancellor. He stated that the Minnesota
State Colleges and Universities had a strong structure in place that expressed a
serious concern and interest in good management of the enterprise. He added that the
committee discussion had brought out issues that they had hoped would be discussed
and he added that it was good for the people at the campus level to understand the
importance of compliance with contracts and board policy. Finally, he commended
the board and the audit committee, for their focus on the issues.

The meeting adjourned at 3:33 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Darla Senn, Recorder



